

NiceLabel Control Center

Installation Guide

Rev-2019-11 ©NiceLabel 2019

www.nicelabel.com

Contents

1	Contents Simple installation on a single computer	. 2
2		. 3
	2.1 Before you start	. 3
	2.2 Installing on a single clean computer	. 4
	2.3 Installing on a computer that hosts the SQL Server	. 9
	2.4 When you are done	13
	2.5 Activating your Control Center	.14
	2.6 Offline Activation	15
3	Performing advanced installations	18
	3.1 Control Center components in Label Management System (LMS)	19
	3.2 Installing with database on a stand-alone SQL server	.20
	3.3 Installing with database in a failover cluster	.30
	3.4 Installing with cloud databases	.43
4	Security and updates	44
	4.1 Adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS	44
	4.2 Choosing the user account for database creation	47
	4.3 Creating and configuring the database users	.48
	4.4 Updating your database connection settings	49
5	Installing Web Printing	52
	5.1 Installation steps for the Web Printing site	.52
	5.2 Web Client installation	.54
6	Online Support	56

2 Simple installation on a single computer

Installing the Control Center on a single computer allows you to operate your labeling environment as a centralized stand-alone system. If you run a small business, or if you want to evaluate the Control Center before starting a large-scale deployment, single computer installation may be all you need to see the benefits of a controlled labeling system.

Installing Control Center should take less than 10 minutes.

You can install Control Center on a computer that <u>does not have a SQL database installed</u>. NiceLabel installs the SQL database for you in this case.



You can install Control Center on a computer with a SQL database already set up.

2.1 Before you start

Install Control Center on a computer running Windows 7 or newer operating system.

Make sure that your system meets the requirements as listed on the dedicated NiceLabel web page: https://www.nicelabel.com/products/specifications/system-requirements.

NOTE: To install Control Center on your computer, you must be logged in as the Administrator.

The official pre-installation NiceLabel check list is available on this web page: https://kb.nicelabel.com/index.php?t=faq&id=298

You can install Control Center by:

- Clicking the download link in the mail that you received after purchasing the Label Cloud.
- Running your NiceLabel installation DVD.

After you finish your installation, you need the license key to activate your Control Center. Purchase your key at <u>https://www.nicelabel.com/buy-online</u>. When done, the NiceLabel sales team sends you an email that contains the key.

The email attachment that contains your key looks like this:

	<text><text><text><text><text><text></text></text></text></text></text></text>		
	<section-header><section-header></section-header></section-header>		NiceLabel
Comparison on our proceedings of the Market Comparison Co	Comparison on one previous of protocol Comparison on the protocol Comparison of the protocol Comparison of the protocol Comparison of the protocol Comp		PRODUCT INFORMATION LMS Enterprise 50 printers upgrade promotion
The advertised of the advertis	The Proof LaB Enterprise 30 primers sugrade provide the Description of the Proof LaB Enterprise 30 primers sugrade provide the Description of the Proof LaB Enterprise 30 primers sugrade provide the Description of the Proof LaB Enterprise 30 primers sugrade provide the Description of the Proof LaB Enterprise 30 primers sugrade primers and Description of the Proof LaB Enterprise 30		Congressitations on your purchase of NocLabel: Copy/paste this key License information:
To critical your others give a content water data with the second of the	The state of the s		Non-Prod LMS Externalse 50 printers upgrade promotion
Tagetada prove alterna providence alterna alterna providence alterna p	To princip your other plane to filler the on-scient instructions while installing of unique to behave in the instruction and the plane in the one of particles to behave in the instruction of the one of particles of the one of the plane instruction of the one of t		
izonte from: Contre restrictions: Contre restrictions: Western prov. zejestick.com	Torona form. Conservational Conservation Co		To activate your software please follow the on-screen instructions while installing or running the software in trial mode. If you have any questions regarding your perchase or activation, please context ware means threat algorithm your perchase the war ware means than a set of the software and the software percent on the software or percent on the software of the context ware means threat algorithm and others or produce the ware numbered the context ware means threat algorithm.
	Contact newsel tithin: your included controlled controlled Development your prediction of the contact of the c		Iconse from. Cither useful links: Website: www.riselabel.com Support resources: www.wiselabel.com/support
www.nicelabel.com		Figur	e 2-2: Email with activation

To read how you activate your Control Center after the installation, read section <u>Activating your</u> Control Center.

2.2 Installing on a single clean computer

This section explains how you install the Control Center on a computer that has neither NiceLabel software nor databases installed.

Before you start installing the Control Center, check the following:

• You must be logged on to your computer as the administrator. If you are the only user, you are probably the administrator.

• Have your NiceLabel license key ready for activating the Control Center. You can complete the installation without the license key, but you cannot start working with Control Center unless you activate your license.

NOTE: NiceLabel recommends accepting all the defaults that the installer offers. This is how you enable the Control Center to automatically configure itself on your computer. This includes installing the SQL database and configuring the IIS.

2.2.1 Starting the installer

- 1. Close all open applications.
- 2. After receiving your purchase confirmation email from NiceLabel, click the included link to download the Control Center installation file. The alternative option is to insert your NiceLabel DVD.

NOTE: If the DVD application menu does not start automatically, double-click Start.exe and select **Install Nice LMS >** NiceLabel Control Center.

- 3. Installation checks the installation package content. Start the installation.
- 4. Select your Control Center installer language. Click **OK**. The installer now checks if your computer is properly configured.

	Select Setup Language
	Select the language to use during the installation:
	OK Cancel
Fig	ure 2-3: Selecting your setup language

- 5. Accept the license agreement. Click Next.
- 6. Select the installation destination folder. Click Next.

2.2.2 Enabling Internet Information Services (IIS)

NOTE: If you do not see the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button, your computer is already properly configured. Continue with the installation.

The Control Center installer checks if the required .NET framework and IIS features are available and properly configured on your computer.

If the Control Center installer finds missing features, the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button appears automatically.

- 1. Click the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button and the Control Center installer enables the missing .NET framework and IIS features for you.
- 2. Accept the license agreement terms.
- 3. Click **Next** to configure website and storage settings.

2.2.3 Setting up website and storage

This step allows you to set up the access to your Control Center documents and to make the Control Center connections with other NiceLabel applications secure.

1. This step is optional. Select **HTTPS support** to establish a secure client–server connection. NiceLabel recommends you secure your Control Center connections if the communication with clients uses open Internet connections.

IMPORTANT! After completing the installation, use the IIS manager to manually add HTTPS site binding and X.509 (SSL) certificate to your selected site. If you do not complete this step, your Control Center does not open. The steps for adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS are described in section Adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS.

2. Define the WebDAV site settings. Type the site name and port number on which the site runs.

This site is the WebDAV entry point into the Document Storage for all applications that work with files in the Document Storage. This site installs in the IIS on the current machine. In most cases, you keep the default settings.

IMPORTANT! Make sure your selected port number is not in use by any other application on this machine. The port might be used by a site in IIS, or by some other application.

🗈 🔓 NiceLabel	NiceLabel Control	Center - InstallAv Setup	vare Wizard	×
Website Settings Nicelabel Control Center needs to enable users to store and use file HTTPS protocol in Nicelabel Contro communication Detiveen Nicelabe Enable	o create a new website that will thom a cambraited location. rol Center encrypts the 8 Control Center and its dents. HTTPS here.	Enable Security S Activate HTT communicati Important After the inst (IIS) Manage certificate to - Default web - Document s	Settings PS (SSI) support for a secure cle on. allation completes, run the Interr r. Nanually add HTIPS Site Bindr the following state: when (the application interface) torage website	ant-server net Information Services ng and add X.509 (SSL)
Clid: Next to continue.	Make sure this port i Iready in use. Sinabling HTTP	bocument Stora The site name ar Site name: Bort: s not S and see	ye website Settings nd port that will be used. SPRWebDAV (Rack Ne tting the Wel	nt> Cancel bDAV port

3. Click **Next**. Proceed with creating your database.

2.2.4 Creating the database

Your Control Center requires a database that runs in the background. Because you do not have any SQL Server instances available on your computer yet, NiceLabel installs Microsoft SQL Server Express for you.

IMPORTANT! To let NiceLabel install the SQL Express on your computer, you must be logged on as an administrator.

1. Click Install SQL Server Express.

A

	NiceLabel Control	Center - InstallAware Wizard Setup	- T X	
Microsoft SQL S	erver Instances	SQL Server Name:	v ng syntax:	
Nostabel Control SQL Server Expre	anter en onnet te av 20, Serve and te report energe fan 2005 Start database installation here.	aar Name: 14:54N Protect of the SQL Server you can install builton heles. Install SQL Server Express	It by pressing the	
		c Back Next :	Cancel	
Figu	re 2-5: Installing	g SQL Express dat	abase	

NOTE: You need Internet access to install the SQL Server Express. This allows the installer to download all the necessary components.

2. Follow the SQL Server Express on-screen installation instructions.

After you finish the SQL Server Express installation, resume with your installation of the Control Center.

3. Select your newly installed SQL Server instance.

The SQL Server Express installer sets the Instance Name to:

(local) \SQLEXPRESS

- 4. Click **Next**. The window that allows you to optionally perform user setting changes appears. This is an optional step required for advanced installation. Ignore and click **Next**.
- 5. Click **Install**. The installation continues.

2.2.5 Completing your installation

1. This step is optional. Before your browser launches and opens the Control Center **Overview** page, you can also start the installation of Web Printing.

Do this if you plan to share the labels and solutions from your Control Center within your company or with external business partners.

If the folder where you started the Control Center installer includes the installation file for Web Printing, you can click **Install NiceLabel Web Printing after this installation is complete**. If the installer does not find the Web printing installation file, this option is not visible.

∎ F Nic	NiceLabel Control	Center - InstallAware Wizard - 🔹 🗙
Completing the Setup has finished computer. Launch I ✓ Run Nectabel ✓ grantal Nectabel complete.	interlabel Control Center Setup Wizard utaling Notabel Control Center on your expectation by selecting the initialed isons.	NiceLabel Control Center
		< Back Finish Cancel

This opens the Web Printing installer. See section <u>Installation steps for the Web Printing</u> <u>site</u> for details on how to install Web Printing.

- 2. Click Finish.
 - Your browser opens the Control Center page.
- 3. Activate your Control Center with the key that you received via email after your purchase.

If you experience any issues during the installation, please contact our NiceLabel support team at <u>https://www.nicelabel.com/support</u>.

2.3 Installing on a computer that hosts the SQL Server

This section explains how you install the Control Center that already hosts the SQL Server.

You must perform three before you start installing the Control Center on your computer that already hosts an SQL database:

- You must be logged in to your computer as the administrator. If you are the only user, you are probably the administrator.
- The account under which you are logged on must have sysadmin role on the SQL database. This allows you to create the dedicated database for your Control Center.

NOTE: If you are logged in as administrator for both Windows and SQL, Control Center installs your database automatically.

• Have your Control Center activation key ready. You can complete the installation without the activation key, but you cannot start working with Control Center unless you activate your license.

2.3.1 Starting the installer

- 1. Close all open applications.
- 2. After receiving your purchase confirmation email from NiceLabel, click the included link to download the Control Center installation file. The alternative option is to insert your NiceLabel DVD.

NOTE: If the DVD application menu does not start automatically, double-click Start.exe and select **Install Nice LMS >** NiceLabel Control Center.

- 3. Installation checks the installation package content. Start the installation.
- 4. Select your Control Center installer language. Click **OK**. The installer now checks if your computer is properly configured.

	Select Setup Language
	Select the language to use during the installation:
	English
	OK Cancel
Fig	ure 2-7: Selecting your setup language

- 5. Accept the license agreement. Click **Next**.
- 6. Select the installation destination folder. Click Next.

2.3.2 Enabling Internet Information Services (IIS)

NOTE: If you do not see the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button, your computer is already properly configured. Continue with the installation.

The Control Center installer checks if the required .NET framework and IIS features are available and properly configured on your computer.

If the Control Center installer finds missing features, the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button appears automatically.

- 1. Click the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button and the Control Center installer enables the missing .NET framework and IIS features for you.
- 2. Accept the license agreement terms.
- 3. Click **Next** to configure website and storage settings.

2.3.3 Setting up website and storage

This step allows you to set up the access to your Control Center documents and to make the Control Center connections with other NiceLabel applications secure.

1. This step is optional. Select **HTTPS support** to establish a secure client–server connection. NiceLabel recommends you secure your Control Center connections if the communication with clients uses open Internet connections.

IMPORTANT! After completing the installation, use the IIS manager to manually add HTTPS site binding and X.509 (SSL) certificate to your selected site. If you do not complete this step, your Control Center does not open. The steps for adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS are described in section Adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS.

2. Define the WebDAV site settings. Type the site name and port number on which the site runs.

This site is the WebDAV entry point into the Document Storage for all applications that work with files in the Document Storage. This site installs in the IIS on the current machine. In most cases, you keep the default settings.

IMPORTANT! Make sure your selected port number is not in use by any other application on this machine. The port might be used by a site in IIS, or by some other application.

NiceLabel Control Cent	ol Center - InstallAware Wizard – 🗆 🗙 er Setup
Website Settings Nectabel Control Center needs to create a new website that we enable user to store and use fibre a certralated location. HTTG: protocol in Nectabel Control Center and the cleans munication between Nectabel Control Center and the cleans Enable HTTPS heree.	Enable Security Settings Advata HTTPS (53.) support for a secure clent-server communation. Temportal After the install environment to formation Services After the install environment to the formative settings and set X.509 (53.) certificate to the following settings: - Default website (the application interface) - Document storage website
Click Next to continue. Make sure this po already in use.	Document Storage Website Settings The site name and port that will be used. Site name: EPH/VebCAV Bort: CBack CBack Next > Cancel

3. Click **Next** to connect to a database.

2.3.4 Connecting to a database

Your Control Center requires a database. This is why you must select an existing SQL Server instance on your computer and connect to a dedicated database.

IMPORTANT! Before you start with this step, make sure you have all the required users from <u>Phase 1</u> ready.

The installer automatically searches for the available SQL instances and lists them on the drop down list.

- 1. Select your SQL Server instance from the drop-down list or type in the name of your SQL Server instance using the following syntax: SQLSERVER\INSTANCE.
- 2. By default, the **Database name** is set to **NiceAN**. NiceLabel recommends keeping the default database name for easier communication with our support team.
- 3. Click **Next**. The window that allows you to optionally perform user setting changes appears. This is an optional step required for advanced installation. Ignore and click **Next**.
- 4. Click Install. The installation continues.

2.3.5 Completing your installation

 This step is optional. Before your browser launches and opens the Control Center Overview page, you can also start the installation of Web Printing.

Do this if you plan to share the labels and solutions from your Control Center within your company or with external business partners.

If the folder where you started the Control Center installer includes the installation file for Web Printing, you can click **Install NiceLabel Web Printing after this installation is complete**. If the installer does not find the Web printing installation file, this option is not visible.

â	NiceLabel Control	Center - InstallAware Wizard - 🗆 🗙
🔓 Nic	eLabel Control Center	^r Setup
Completing the Setup has finished computer. Launch	NiceLabel Control Center Setup Wizard installing NiceLabel Control Center on your the application by selecting the installed icons.	
✓ Run NiceLabel ✓ Instal NiceLabel complete.	Control Center el Web Printing after this installation is	NiceLabel Control Center
		< Back Finish Cancel

This opens the Web Printing installer. See section <u>Installation steps for the Web Printing</u> site for details on how to install Web Printing.

- 2. Click Finish.
 - Your browser opens the Control Center page.
- 3. Activate your Control Center with the key that you received via email after your purchase.

If you experience any issues during the installation, please contact our NiceLabel support team at https://www.nicelabel.com/support.

2.4 When you are done

After the installation completes, your browser opens the Control Center **Overview** page.

The address of your Control Center is: http://yourcomputername/EPM.

NOTE: Control Center cannot work properly with JavaScript disabled. If you are installing Control Center on a server, it is possible that due to security reasons, JavaScript is disabled by default. If there are no security issues, enable JavaScript in your Internet Explorer browser and reload the page. Read more here: <u>https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/help/3135465/how-to-enable-javascript-in-windows</u>.

Instructions for additional Control Center functions are available here:

 Application server - Configuring RemoteApp: https://kb.nicelabel.com/index.php?t=faq&id=299

2.5 Activating your Control Center

To activate your Control Center, you need the key that you received via email from NiceLabel after completing your purchase.

The mail attachment containing the activation key looks like this:

NiceLab
PRODUCT INFORMATION
LMS Enterprise 50 printers upgrade promotion
Congratulations on your purchase of NiceLabel. License information: Software Key Non-Prod LMS Enterprise 50 printers upgrade promotion IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
To activate your software please follow the on-screen instructions while installing or running the software in trial mode.
If you have any questions regarding your purchase or activation, please contact your nearest NiceLabel office or partner that your purchased the license from.
Other useful links: Website: www.nicelabel.com/support Support resources: www.nicelabel.com/support Contact nearest office: www.nicelabel.com/downloads/printer-drivers EVLA: www.nicelabel.com/degal
www.nicelabel.com
Figure 2-10: Email with activation key

The non-activated Control Center only shows two pages – **Overview** and **Administration**, while all other pages remain inaccessible. Activation unlocks these pages and allows you to start working with your labels.

The below described activation procedure requires Internet access. If your computer is offline, see section Offline Activation

- 1. Open your Control Center and go to Administration > Licenses.
- 2. Click Activate new product.
- 3. Copy your license key from the email that you received from NiceLabel.
- 4. Paste your Key to the License Key field.
- 5. Type your user information.
- 6. Click Next.

When the activation passes, all your Control Center functions become unlocked.

Open the Control Center (type the URL http://yourcomputername/epm) page in your browser. The page should look like this:

NiceLabel Control Center	
🖷 Overview 🕰 Documents 😂 Applications 🔺 Printers 🔍 History 🖼 Reports 🔺 Automation 💜 Administration	
Overview Quickly access an overview of recent printing activity and server information.	
Server Info	
Server name: urosj	
Server time: 2:36 PM	
Operational Workstations within the Last Hour License Status	
Workstation Recently Printed Last Print Recent Errors License Type	Used Total
No workstations connected. LMS Enterprise	1 20
Recent Errors	
Type Module Workstation User Status Submitted	
He contact care as your arry of contact men	
	Version 19.0.0.3536
	Version 19.0.0.3536

If you encounter difficulties during the installation or activation of your Control Center, please use NiceLabel online support resources or contact NiceLabel support directly.

Details about NiceLabel licensing are available in the <u>NiceLabel 2019 Licensing</u> guide.

Thank you for installing the NiceLabel Control Center. For any suggestions on how we can improve our products, do not hesitate to contact us at <u>support@nicelabel.com</u>.

2.6 Offline Activation

To activate your Control Center on a computer without Internet connection:

- 1. Repeat steps 1–5 from section <u>Activating your Control Center</u>.
- 2. Click the **Activation Web Page** link. When the browser window opens, copy the entire address.



- 3. Go to another computer with available Internet connection. Paste the **Activation Web Page** link into the web browser address bar.
- 4. After the Activation Web Page opens on the computer with Internet connection, fields with information about your license are automatically populated. You can also edit personal information.

Lice	nse Key Activati	on
Welcome to the Nic activation dialog	eLabel activation site. Please copy the data from box into the fields below. Then press the ACTIV	n your NiceLabel /ATE button.
License Key: Registration Code: Name: Company: Company:	RUN PERSONAL MARK Long PET State State State Name	1
E-mail:	Notify me about software update * - required ACTIVATE RESET	25
Figur	e 2-13: License key activa	ation

5. Click **Activate** to generate the **Activation Code**. The page with your activation code opens. Copy the **Activation Code**. You will use the **Activation Code** on your offline computer.



NOTE: Do not close the license activation dialog while obtaining the **Activation Code** on another computer with Internet access. If you close it, you must repeat the procedure with a new **Registration Code**.

NOTE: If you do not have any available computers with Internet connection, call NiceLabel support. You will receive an **Activation Code** based on your **Registration Code**.

6. Go back to your offline computer on which you are activating the Control Center. Paste the activation code into the **Activation Code** field.



7. Click Finish. Your offline Control Center is activated.

3 Performing advanced installations

Large-scale deployments of Control Center require sufficient processing capabilities and increased availability of your stored data. This calls for an installation, after which the Control Center application and its database run on separate machines.

There are three advanced Control Center installation scenarios:

• Installing with a stand-alone SQL Server. Use this installation procedure if you have an existing stand-alone server that hosts your SQL Server, and plan to run the Control Center on a separate computer.



• <u>Installing Control Center with database in failover cluster</u>. If labeling is a mission-critical business process for your company, you might want to ensure high availability operation of your database. In this case, you are going to run the Control Center's database in a failover cluster.



• <u>Installing with cloud databases</u>. If your company uses cloud infrastructure, you can install the Control Center database in your cloud.



3.1 Control Center components in Label Management System (LMS)

Control Center represents the core of NiceLabel LMS which allows you to create a multi-user labeling environment.

These are the server-side NiceLabel LMS components:

- Control Center web application. This is the main Control Center software component that runs on Microsoft Internet Information Services (IIS) using .NET platform.
- Web Printing. This application allows you to share the labels and solutions that you store in Control Center's document storage within your company or with external business partners. The installation of Web Printing is optional.
- Database back-end. Microsoft SQL Server hosts the Control Center database.

		-	
Microsoft SQL Database	NiceLabel Control Cente	er and <mark>Web</mark> Printing	Microsoft IIS Server
Design Labels / Solutions	On-Demand Printing	Integrated Printing	On-Demand Printing
NiceLabel Designer and Automation Builder	NiceLabel Print	NiceLabel Automation	Web Printing Client

In an LMS environment, your Control Center cooperates with these client components:

- NiceLabel Designer. This is the label and form designer using which you create label templates and printing applications (forms) for your desktop and Web printing users.
- NiceLabel Print enables label printing without giving the print operator the access to label design.
- NiceLabel Automation helps you deploy and run automated label printing systems by synchronizing business events with label production.
- Web Printing client enables web users to work with shared applications from the Control Center document storage.

3.2 Installing with database on a stand-alone SQL server

In this scenario, you have a stand-alone server that hosts your SQL Server and you plan to run the Control Center application on a separate server.

Complete these 2 phases:

- 1. <u>Phase 1.</u> Identify the required Windows and database users.
- 2. <u>Phase 2.</u> Install the Control Center application and set up your database connection.

3.2.1 Phase 1: Identifying the required users

To install and deploy the Control Center that works with a database that runs on a separate server, server cluster, or cloud server, have the required authorized users ready:



- 1. **Sysadmin.** To create the Control Center database on the server that hosts your SQL Server instance, you need a system administrator or SQL user with administrative privileges.
- 2. **EPM_USER.** A user (Windows or SQL) that enables the Control Center to read data from the database.
- 3. EPM_DBADMIN. A user (Windows or SQL) that owns the database.

There are two options to create EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN users:

- i. **Automatically.** During the installation, your Control Center installer creates these two users for you.
- ii. **Manually.** Before the installation, you can manually add EPM_USER and EPM_ DBADMIN users in these two places:
 - On your Windows system. In this case, the EPM users are Windows users.
 - On your SQL Server. In this case, the EPM users can either be Windows or SQL users.

NOTE: NiceAN is the default name for the Control Center database.

4. **Windows admin.** To install the Control Center on the dedicated server, you need a Windows local or domain user with administrative privileges.

3.2.2 Phase 2: Installing the Control Center application with a stand-alone SQL Server

Before you start installing the Control Center, check the following:

- You must be logged on to your computer as the administrator. If you are the only user, you are probably the administrator.
- Have your NiceLabel license key ready for activating the Control Center. You can complete the installation without the license key, but you cannot start working with Control Center unless you activate your license.

NOTE: NiceLabel recommends accepting all the defaults that the installer offers. This is how you enable the Control Center to automatically configure itself on your computer. This includes installing the SQL database and configuring the IIS.

3.2.2.1 Starting the installer

- 1. Close all open applications.
- 2. After receiving your purchase confirmation email from NiceLabel, click the included link to download the Control Center installation file. The alternative option is to insert your NiceLabel DVD.

NOTE: If the DVD application menu does not start automatically, double-click Start.exe and select **Install Nice LMS >** NiceLabel Control Center.

- 3. Installation checks the installation package content. Start the installation.
- 4. Select your Control Center installer language. Click **OK**. The installer now checks if your computer is properly configured.

Select Setup Language	
Select the language to use during the installation:	
OK Cancel	
Figure 3-6: Selecting your setup langu	juage

- 5. Accept the license agreement. Click Next.
- 6. Select the installation destination folder. Click Next.

3.2.2.2 Enabling Internet Information Services (IIS)

NOTE: If you do not see the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button, your computer is already properly configured. Continue with the installation.

The Control Center installer checks if the required .NET framework and IIS features are available and properly configured on your computer.

If the Control Center installer finds missing features, the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button appears automatically.

- 1. Click the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button and the Control Center installer enables the missing .NET framework and IIS features for you.
- 2. Accept the license agreement terms.
- 3. Click Next to configure website and storage settings.

3.2.2.3 Setting up website and storage

This step allows you to set up the access to your Control Center documents and to make the Control Center connections with other NiceLabel applications secure.

1. This step is optional. Select **HTTPS support** to establish a secure client–server connection. NiceLabel recommends you secure your Control Center connections if the communication with clients uses open Internet connections.

IMPORTANT! After completing the installation, use the IIS manager to manually add HTTPS site binding and X.509 (SSL) certificate to your selected site. If you do not complete this step, your Control Center does not open. The steps for adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS are described in section <u>Adding</u> <u>HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS</u>.

2. Define the WebDAV site settings. Type the site name and port number on which the site runs.

This site is the WebDAV entry point into the Document Storage for all applications that work with files in the Document Storage. This site installs in the IIS on the current machine. In most cases, you keep the default settings.

IMPORTANT! Make sure your selected port number is not in use by any other application on this machine. The port might be used by a site in IIS, or by some other application.

🖻 🔓 NiceLab	NiceLabel Control	Setup	ware Wizard	×
Website Settings Nicalabel Control Center neer enable users to store and use HTTPS protocol in Nicalabel C communication between Nical Enable	ds to create a new website that will files from a centralized location. android Center encrypte the abel Control Center and its dents. Le HTTPS here.	Enable Security Activate H communica After the ir (IIS) Mana certificate - Default w - Documen	Settings TTPS (SSL) support for a secure cile itori. H Balalaon conpletes, run the Intern pr. Nerually add HTPS Site Bindin be Holking Isster be Holking Isster ebsite (the application interface) storage website	nt-server et Information Services g and add X.509 (SSL)
Click Next to continue.	Make sure this port already in use. Enabling HTTP	bocument Stor The site name: get name: Bort: S and S of	age Website Settings and port that will be used. PMWebDAV C Back Ner etting the Wel	a> Cancel

3. Click **Next**. The installer checks if everything is OK and starts installing the Control Center.

3.2.2.4 Creating the database

Your Control Center requires a database. This is why you must select an existing SQL Server instance on your server and create a dedicated database in this step.

IMPORTANT! Before you start with this installation, make sure you have all the required users from <u>Phase 1</u> ready.

- 1. Select the SQL Server instance from the drop-down menu or type in the name of your SQL Server instance using the following syntax: SQLSERVER\INSTANCE.
- 2. Type your **Database name**. NiceLabel recommends you to keep the default name **NiceAN**. This makes potential future communication with our support team easier.
- 3. Click **Next**. If you have set up the required users in <u>Phase 1</u> properly, the Control Center installer creates the database and the required users automatically, and proceeds to the next step.

NOTE: By default, the Control Center installer always tries to create the database and the required users under the user account you are currently logged into. If the Control Center installer discovers that your account is missing privileges for the selected SQL Server instance, the installation asks you to log in as a user that has the required set of privileges.

There are three possible reasons why the installer cannot proceed:

- i. Your account is missing the privilege to create a database. The installer is trying to create a database while you are logged on as a user without sufficient privileges. Because the installer cannot continue, a window opens for you to log on as a Windows or a SQL user with **sysadmin** role on the SQL Server instance.
- ii. Your account is missing the privilege to create users. The installer is trying to create the EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN Windows users on the database server, and to set their access privileges. At this moment, the installer discovers that your account lacks the privilege to complete these two actions. As a result, the installer cannot continue and opens a window for you to log on as a Window or SQL user with granted "create user" privilege.
- iii. Your account is missing both privileges from above. In this case, the Control Center installer discovers that your account lacks privileges to create the database and to create the required users. A window opens allowing you to log on using user name and password that allow you to create the database and required users.

To customize the user account under which the installer creates the database, and the required users, open the **Optional User Setting Changes**. Details are available in section Choosing the user account for database creation.

NOTE: If you still cannot proceed, contact your local system administrator to identify the required users.

4. Click **Next**. The installer checks if everything is OK and installs the Control Center. If the credentials issue persists, the logon window appears automatically.

3.2.2.5 Completing your installation

1. This step is optional. Before your browser launches and opens the Control Center **Overview** page, you can also start the installation of Web Printing.

Do this if you plan to share the labels and solutions from your Control Center within your company or with external business partners.

If the folder where you started the Control Center installer includes the installation file for Web Printing, you can click **Install NiceLabel Web Printing after this installation is complete**. If the installer does not find the Web printing installation file, this option is not visible.

⊡ C Nic	NiceLabel Control C	Center - InstallAware Wizard – 🗆 🗙
Completing the Setup has finished computer. Launch ✓ Run Neculabel ✓ Instal Neculabel complete.	Nicclabel Control Center Setup Wizard Installing Notable Control Center on spor the application by selecting the installed icons.	NiceLabel Control Center
		< Back Finish Cancel

This opens the Web Printing installer. See section <u>Installation steps for the Web Printing</u> <u>site</u> for details on how to install Web Printing.

- 2. Click Finish.
 - Your browser opens the Control Center page.
- 3. Activate your Control Center with the key that you received via email after your purchase.

If you experience any issues during the installation, please contact our NiceLabel support team at https://www.nicelabel.com/support.

3.2.3 When you are done

After the installation completes, your browser opens the Control Center **Overview** page.

The address of your Control Center is: http://yourcomputername/EPM.

NOTE: Control Center cannot work properly with JavaScript disabled. If you are installing Control Center on a server, it is possible that due to security reasons, JavaScript is disabled by default. If there are no security issues, enable JavaScript in your Internet Explorer browser and reload the page. Read more here: <u>https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/help/3135465/how-to-enable-javascript-in-windows</u>.

Instructions for additional Control Center functions are available here:

 Application server - Configuring RemoteApp: <u>https://kb.nicelabel.com/index.php?t=faq&id=299</u>

3.2.4 Activating your Control Center

To activate your Control Center, you need the key that you received via email from NiceLabel after completing your purchase.



The mail attachment containing the activation key looks like this:

The non-activated Control Center only shows two pages – **Overview** and **Administration**, while all other pages remain inaccessible. Activation unlocks these pages and allows you to start working with your labels.

The below described activation procedure requires Internet access. If your computer is offline, see section <u>Offline Activation</u>

- 1. Open your Control Center and go to Administration > Licenses.
- 2. Click Activate new product.
- 3. Copy your license key from the email that you received from NiceLabel.
- 4. Paste your Key to the License Key field.

- 5. Type your user information.
- 6. Click Next.

When the activation passes, all your Control Center functions become unlocked.

Open the Control Center (type the URL http://yourcomputername/epm) page in your browser. The page should look like this:

NiceLabel Control Center	
🖷 Overview 🕰 Documents 🕾 Applications 👗 Printers 🔍 History 🖬 Reports 👗 Automation 📽 Administration	
Overview Quickly access an overview of recent printing activity and server information.	
Server Info	
Server name: urosj	
Server time: 2:36 PM	
Operational Workstations within the Last Hour License Status	
Workstation Recently Printed Last Print Recent Errors License Type	Used Total
No workstations connected. LMS Enterprise	1 20
Recent Errors	
Type Module Workstation User Status Submitted No articities could be found using the current filter.	
2208-201 ben flej manutakladam j Alaph noved.	Version 19.0.0.3576

If you encounter difficulties during the installation or activation of your Control Center, please use NiceLabel <u>online support resources</u> or contact NiceLabel <u>support</u> directly.

Details about NiceLabel licensing are available in the NiceLabel 2019 Licensing guide.

Thank you for installing the NiceLabel Control Center. For any suggestions on how we can improve our products, do not hesitate to contact us at <u>support@nicelabel.com</u>.

3.2.5 Offline Activation

To activate your Control Center on a computer without Internet connection:

- 1. Repeat steps 1–5 from section <u>Activating your Control Center</u>.
- 2. Click the **Activation Web Page** link. When the browser window opens, copy the entire address.

Open this link on a computer with internet connection.

- 3. Go to another computer with available Internet connection. Paste the **Activation Web Page** link into the web browser address bar.
- 4. After the Activation Web Page opens on the computer with Internet connection, fields with information about your license are automatically populated. You can also edit personal information.

Velcome to the NiceLabel activation site. Please copy the data from your Nic activation dialog box into the fields below. Then press the ACTIVATE but	eLabel .on.
License Key:	0
Registration Code:	1.1
Name:	
Company:	
Country:	
E-mail:	_
Notify me about software updates	
* - required	
ACTIVATE	

5. Click **Activate** to generate the **Activation Code**. The page with your activation code opens. Copy the **Activation Code**. You will use the **Activation Code** on your offline computer.

License Key Activation
The activation code was successfully generated. To finish the activation procedure, enter Activation Code to the NiceLabel Activation dialog box.
Activation Code:
The e-mail with Activation Code was successfully sent to address you have provided.
Figure 3-13: Activation code is ready

NOTE: Do not close the license activation dialog while obtaining the **Activation Code** on another computer with Internet access. If you close it, you must repeat the procedure with a new **Registration Code**.

NOTE: If you do not have any available computers with Internet connection, call NiceLabel support. You will receive an **Activation Code** based on your **Registration Code**.

6. Go back to your offline computer on which you are activating the Control Center. Paste the activation code into the **Activation Code** field.



7. Click Finish. Your offline Control Center is activated.

3.3 Installing with database in a failover cluster

In comparison to a single-server database configuration, running the Control Center database in a failover cluster makes sure that your data is accessible even in case of a server failure.

NOTE: For instruction on how to complete the SQL Server Failover Cluster Installation, please visit the <u>dedicated Microsoft web page</u>.

Complete these 3 installation phases to get the high availability Control Center working:

- 1. <u>Phase 1.</u> Identify the required Windows and database users.
- 2. <u>Phase 2.</u> Create and configure the database on your failover cluster.
- 3. <u>Phase 3.</u> Install the Control Center application and connect your Control Center to the database that runs on the clustered servers.

3.3.1 Phase 1: Identifying the required users

To install and deploy the Control Center that works with a database that runs on a separate server, server cluster, or cloud server, have the required authorized users ready:



- 1. **Sysadmin.** To create the Control Center database on the server that hosts your SQL Server instance, you need a system administrator or SQL user with administrative privileges.
- 2. **EPM_USER.** A user (Windows or SQL) that enables the Control Center to read data from the database.
- 3. EPM_DBADMIN. A user (Windows or SQL) that owns the database.

There are two options to create EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN users:

- i. **Automatically.** During the installation, your Control Center installer creates these two users for you.
- ii. **Manually.** Before the installation, you can manually add EPM_USER and EPM_ DBADMIN users in these two places:

- On your Windows system. In this case, the EPM users are Windows users.
- On your SQL Server. In this case, the EPM users can either be Windows or SQL users.

NOTE: NiceAN is the default name for the Control Center database.

4. **Windows admin.** To install the Control Center on the dedicated server, you need a Windows local or domain user with administrative privileges.

3.3.2 Phase 2: Creating your database in a failover cluster

Before you start creating the Control Center database on your failover cluster, check the following:

- To install the Control Center database, you need an Administrative account for the SQL Server. You can be logged on as:
 - A Windows user that has been set up as the SQL administrator. See the **Logins** section in the SQL Server Management Studio.
 - A SQL user account with permissions to create a database, such as the user "sa".
- Make sure your SQL Server cluster is configured correctly. Please refer to the <u>Microsoft</u> user documentation that covers the installation and configuration of SQL Server.
- Have the Database Setup Tool installer ready. To locate the Database Setup Tool installer, open the **Advanced installation** folder on your NiceLabel installation DVD.

The Database Setup Tool is a utility tool that enables you to:

- Create and manage the database on your SQL Server.
- Create and manage the required database users.

IMPORTANT! When you run the Database Setup Tool, the tool creates an .ini file. You need this .ini file to store your database configuration settings. These settings enable you to install the Control Center application.

- 1. Create the database in the failover cluster from the server on which you are also installing the Control Center. Log on to this server.
- 2. Copy the folder Install\DBTool from NiceLabel DVD to the local disk. This folder includes the Database Setup Tool.
- 3. Double click DBToolSFX.exe to run the Database Setup Tool. Go to Server Information.

- SQL Server name is the name of the SQL Server instance on which you are creating your Control Center database. By default, the Database Setup Tool names the instance as SERVER\SQLSERVER.
- **Database name** is the name of the database you are creating. NiceLabel recommends you to keep the default name **NiceAN** for potential future communication with our support team.
- You can create your database by logging on as a Windows or as a SQL user. Select the **Authentication** type.

IMPORTANT! No matter which authentication type you choose, the user account must have sysadmin privileges on the SQL Server.

- If you decide to use **Windows** authentication, you have two options. In both cases, your account needs Windows domain administrative privileges and SQL sysadmin role.
 - Select **Use currently logged on user** if the Windows user you are currently logged on has sufficient privileges.
 - You can use another Windows account if your current user has insufficient privileges.

NOTE: Make sure you use the DOMAIN\USER syntax.

• If you decide to use **SQL Server** authentication, provide a user defined in the SQL Server that has a sysadmin role. This is usually the sa user.



- 4. To define the database users, go to **Database Information**.
 - Users creation selects how you are going to define the required database users.
 - To let the Database Setup Tool automatically create the required users for you, accept the default selection: **Create EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN**.
 - To give already created users EPM roles, select **I have created the users myself**.
 - In both cases, you can use Windows or SQL Server authentication.
- 5. Click Create database. A confirmation window appears.
- 6. Click **Save settings and exit**. Your Windows explorer opens. Store your .ini configuration file on a USB key or at an accessible location on your network.

Success	X Database was successfully created. Important: Save Settings to .ini file You will need to save the settings that you used to create the defense on this machine to .ini file. You will need this file when you run his to make on other failover servers. You will also need this file when you if the setting on the water on the water on the setting the setting of the setting of the setting.
	Save settings and exit Exit without saving Figure 3-17: Saving the database settings

WARNING: Keep the .ini file in a secure location. This file contains sensitive configuration settings that could compromise the security of your labeling system.

Certain companies require regular database configuration changes. In most cases, such changes are part of regular security updates. To change the database configuration:

- 1. Click the **Update installation configuration** button.
- 2. A new window opens. Choose what to upgrade.

3.3.3 Phase 3: Installing the Control Center application

Before you start installing the Control Center, check the following:

- You must be logged on to your computer as the administrator. If you are the only user, you are probably the administrator.
- Have your NiceLabel license key ready for activating the Control Center. You can complete the installation without the license key, but you cannot start working with Control Center unless you activate your license.

NOTE: NiceLabel recommends accepting all the defaults that the installer offers. This is how you enable the Control Center to automatically configure itself on your computer. This includes installing the SQL database and configuring the IIS.

3.3.3.1 Storing installer and .ini file in the same folder

- 1. Create a dedicated Control Center installation folder on your computer.
- 2. Copy the Control Center installer file to the dedicated folder.
- 3. Copy your .ini file to the folder.

WARNING: Keep the copy of your. ini file in a secure location. This file contains sensitive configuration settings that could compromise the security of your labeling system.

The Control Center installer uses your .ini file to automatically configure the clustered database connections.

3.3.3.2 Starting the installer

- 1. Close all open applications.
- 2. After receiving your purchase confirmation email from NiceLabel, click the included link to download the Control Center installation file. The alternative option is to insert your NiceLabel DVD.

NOTE: If the DVD application menu does not start automatically, double-click Start.exe and select Install Nice LMS > NiceLabel Control Center.

- 3. Installation checks the installation package content. Start the installation.
- 4. Select your Control Center installer language. Click **OK**. The installer now checks if your computer is properly configured.

	Select Setup Language
	Select the language to use during the installation:
	English v
	OK Cancel
F	igure 3-19: Selecting your setup language

- 5. Accept the license agreement. Click Next.
- 6. Select the installation destination folder. Click Next.

3.3.3.3 Enabling Internet Information Services (IIS)

NOTE: If you do not see the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button, your computer is already properly configured. Continue with the installation.

The Control Center installer checks if the required .NET framework and IIS features are available and properly configured on your computer.

If the Control Center installer finds missing features, the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button appears automatically.

- 1. Click the **Enable Missing IIS Features** button and the Control Center installer enables the missing .NET framework and IIS features for you.
- 2. Accept the license agreement terms.
- 3. Click **Next** to configure website and storage settings.

3.3.3.4 Setting up website and storage

This step allows you to set up the access to your Control Center documents and to make the Control Center connections with other NiceLabel applications secure.

1. This step is optional. Select **HTTPS support** to establish a secure client–server connection. NiceLabel recommends you secure your Control Center connections if the communication with clients uses open Internet connections.

IMPORTANT! After completing the installation, use the IIS manager to manually add HTTPS site binding and X.509 (SSL) certificate to your selected site. If you do not complete this step, your Control Center does not open. The steps for adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS are described in section <u>Adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS</u>.

2. Define the WebDAV site settings. Type the site name and port number on which the site runs.

This site is the WebDAV entry point into the Document Storage for all applications that work with files in the Document Storage. This site installs in the IIS on the current machine. In most cases, you keep the default settings.

IMPORTANT! Make sure your selected port number is not in use by any other application on this machine. The port might be used by a site in IIS, or by some other application.

NiceLabel Control Cent	er Setup
Website Settings Nectable Control Center needs to create a new vebsite that will enable uses to store and use files from a centralized control HTTPS protocoll Netable Control Center and its deets. Enable HTTPS here.	Chable Security Settings Activate HTTPS (SI3 support for a secure client-server communication. Important After evaluation completes, run the Internet Information Services (SI) Manager, Menually, edd HTTPS Site Binding and add X.509 (SI3.) certificate to the following sites: - effective to the Moleculation Interface) - Document storage website
Click Next to continue. Make sure this poi already in use.	Document Storage Website Settings The site name and part that will be used. Site name: PM/vietOAV Bort: 9000 (Back Newt? Cancel TPS and setting the WebDAV poor

3. Click **Next**. The installer checks if everything is OK and starts installing the Control Center.

3.3.3.5 Completing your installation

 This step is optional. Before your browser launches and opens the Control Center Overview page, you can also start the installation of Web Printing.

Do this if you plan to share the labels and solutions from your Control Center within your company or with external business partners.

If the folder where you started the Control Center installer includes the installation file for Web Printing, you can click **Install NiceLabel Web Printing after this installation is complete**. If the installer does not find the Web printing installation file, this option is not visible.

⊡ nic	NiceLabel Control	Center - InstallAware Wizard – 🗆 🗙
Completing the I Setup has finished computer. Launch I ✓ Run NiceLabel ✓ Iruntal NecLabel complete.	NiceLabel Control Center Setup Wizard Installing Noclabel Control Center on your the application by selecting the installed icons.	NiceLabel Control Center
		< Back Finish Cancel

This opens the Web Printing installer. See section <u>Installation steps for the Web Printing</u> <u>site</u> for details on how to install Web Printing.

- 2. Click Finish.
 - Your browser opens the Control Center page.
- 3. Activate your Control Center with the key that you received via email after your purchase.

If you experience any issues during the installation, please contact our NiceLabel support team at <u>https://www.nicelabel.com/support</u>.

3.3.4 Ensuring uninterrupted document access in all load balancing and failover clusters

If you are using a Microsoft cluster, Control Center automatically routes the document requests to the correct node. This is how your documents are always available, no matter which node in your cluster is currently in use.

In certain installation scenarios, you might also use alternative clustering solutions. In these cases, automatic selection of nodes might cause document access issues. To ensure uninterrupted access to your documents in a non-Microsoft cluster, you must manually update the Control Center database:

- 1. Open your SQL Server Management Studio and connect to the SQL server that hosts your Control Center database.
- 2. Expand Databases > NiceAN > Tables and find the nan.Setting table.

3. Edit the nan.Setting table. Add a new row: Setting = 'ClusterName', Value = '<cluster name>'.

EXAMPLE: 21	ClusterName	yourcluster.domain.local	
NOTE: NiceAN is the	default name for the	Control Center databas	ə.

3.3.5 When you are done

After the installation completes, your browser opens the Control Center **Overview** page.

The address of your Control Center is: http://yourcomputername/EPM.

NOTE: Control Center cannot work properly with JavaScript disabled. If you are installing Control Center on a server, it is possible that due to security reasons, JavaScript is disabled by default. If there are no security issues, enable JavaScript in your Internet Explorer browser and reload the page. Read more here: <u>https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/help/3135465/how-to-enable-javascript-in-windows</u>.

Instructions for additional Control Center functions are available here:

 Application server - Configuring RemoteApp: https://kb.nicelabel.com/index.php?t=faq&id=299

3.3.6 Activating your Control Center

To activate your Control Center, you need the key that you received via email from NiceLabel after completing your purchase.

The mail attachment containing the activation key looks like this:



The non-activated Control Center only shows two pages – **Overview** and **Administration**, while all other pages remain inaccessible. Activation unlocks these pages and allows you to start working with your labels.

The below described activation procedure requires Internet access. If your computer is offline, see section <u>Offline Activation</u>

- 1. Open your Control Center and go to Administration > Licenses.
- 2. Click Activate new product.
- 3. Copy your license key from the email that you received from NiceLabel.
- 4. Paste your Key to the License Key field.
- 5. Type your user information.
- 6. Click Next.

When the activation passes, all your Control Center functions become unlocked.

Open the Control Center (type the URL http://yourcomputername/epm) page in your browser. The page should look like this:

NiceLabel Control Center	• Help	
希 Overview 🕰 Documents 😂 Applications 👗 Printers 🛛 History 🖼 Reports 🗚 Automation 🕫 Au	Administration	
Overview Quickly access an overview of recent printing activity and server information.		
Server Info		
Server name: uroj Server timi: 2:36 PM		
Operational Workstations within the Last Hour Licer	ense Status	
Workstation Recently Printed Last Print Recent Errors Licen	nse Type Used Total	
No workstations connected. LMS I	s Enterprise 1 20	
Recent Errors		
Type Module Workstation User Status Sub	ibmitted •	
No activities coulo de found using the current inter.		
(C) 2006 - 2018 Euro Plus www.nicelabel.com All rights reserved.	Version 19.0.0	0.3536
Figure 2 22: Control Contor Over	view no go	
Figure 3-23: Control Center Overv	view page	

If you encounter difficulties during the installation or activation of your Control Center, please use NiceLabel <u>online support resources</u> or contact NiceLabel <u>support</u> directly.

Details about NiceLabel licensing are available in the NiceLabel 2019 Licensing guide.

Thank you for installing the NiceLabel Control Center. For any suggestions on how we can improve our products, do not hesitate to contact us at support@nicelabel.com.

3.3.7 Offline Activation

To activate your Control Center on a computer without Internet connection:

- 1. Repeat steps 1–5 from section <u>Activating your Control Center</u>.
- 2. Click the **Activation Web Page** link. When the browser window opens, copy the entire address.

	estabili Control Center Ackumyuni ene	
	Auroret Actualor Auroret Actualor	
Figure 3	4: Open the Activation web page on computer with Internet access	

- 3. Go to another computer with available Internet connection. Paste the **Activation Web Page** link into the web browser address bar.
- 4. After the Activation Web Page opens on the computer with Internet connection, fields

with information about your license are automatically populated. You can also edit personal information.

Welcome to the Nice activation dialog f	Label activation site. F box into the fields belo	lease copy ti w. Then pre	he data from ss the ACTIV	your NiceLabe ATE button.
License Key: Registration Code: Name: Company: Country: E-mail:	ECU PEAN Look PEEN North North	10.11	102	1
	Notify n req ACTIVATE	ne about soft uired RESET	ware update	:5
Figure	ə 3-25: Licer	isekey	activa	ition

5. Click **Activate** to generate the **Activation Code**. The page with your activation code opens. Copy the **Activation Code**. You will use the **Activation Code** on your offline computer.

License Key Activation
The activation code was successfully generated. To finish the activation procedure, enter Activation Code to the NiceLabel Activation dialog box.
Activation Code:
The e-mail with Activation Code was successfully sent to address you have provided.
Figure 3-26: Activation code is ready

NOTE: Do not close the license activation dialog while obtaining the **Activation Code** on another computer with Internet access. If you close it, you must repeat the procedure with a new **Registration Code**.

NOTE: If you do not have any available computers with Internet connection, call NiceLabel support. You will receive an **Activation Code** based on your **Registration Code**.

6. Go back to your offline computer on which you are activating the Control Center. Paste the activation code into the **Activation Code** field.

istration 1. User Information 2. Product Activation	Administration
Isomo Kery Isomo Kery Registration Number: Activation Code: a Plant device the internet you can read the automatic activation button and the water will by its activate the Activation Code: a allow be accounted to the internet you can read the automatic activation button and the water will be internet. Activation: Code: a allow be accounted to the internet you can read the automatic activation button and the water will be internet. Activation: Code: a allow be accounted to the internet you can read the automatic activation button and the water will be internet. Activation: Code: a allow be accounted to the plant the plant the plant the plant to the plan	Application Users Application Groups Licenses

7. Click Finish. Your offline Control Center is activated.

3.4 Installing with cloud databases

You can install Control Center databases (NiceAN) on your local server, or install cloud databases. To install a cloud database, select it from the **Database type** drop-down menu on our Database Setup Tool during installation:

• **Microsoft SQL Server** is your locally installed (on-premise) Control Center database. Select this option to run your NiceAN database, Control Center, and its database locally.

NOTE: You can use Windows or SQL authentication to connect to the **Microsoft SQL Server** database.

- **Microsoft Azure SQL Database** is the database you install in your company's own Microsoft Azure cloud. Select this option to run Control Center locally and run its database on your Azure cloud.
- Microsoft Azure SQL Database Managed Instance is the database you install on your SQL server that runs on a virtual machine in Azure cloud.
- Amazon RDS is the database you run in your Amazon cloud.

NOTE: You can use SQL authentication for all three cloud-based database types.

NOTE: NiceLabel installs and maintains your database for you when you use Control Center databases in the NiceLabel Azure cloud (within the onnicelabel.com domain).

4 Security and updates

4.1 Adding HTTPS site binding and SSL certificate in IIS

NOTE: If your Control Center with address https://yourservername/epm opens in the browser, the IIS on your computer is already properly configured. You can skip this section.

Because you are planning to use your Control Center in an open networking environment, you selected the **HTTPS support** while installing your Control Center. If you enable the **HTTPS support** option during the installation, your Control Center's address becomes

https://yourservername/epm ("http://" becomes "https://").

NOTE: For more information about the security of your printing environment, consult personnel responsible for the networking infrastructure in your company.

Before you can open and start working with your Control Center using a secure connection, configure your IIS.

NOTE: If you do not have the IIS Manager installed on your computer, get it from <u>Microsoft</u> <u>Download Center</u>.

Instructions for the Default Web Site

- 1. Open your IIS Manager.
- 2. In the **Connection** panel on the left side of the window, expand the **<servername>** node, and expand the **Sites** node.

	Internet Information Services (IIS) Monanee	
(a) (a) (b) > Sites + Default Web Site +		10 H (2) 10 ·
File Year Help		
Connections	Default Web Site Home	Actions
19	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Debay
2 Application Paols	Prese Processing Security Records Processing	Edit Ste
· Default liteb Site	MET Enforcement Produces rates for a discriminant and an electrical and and enforcement	Enderg.
> apost_client	C MT Site Bindings 2	Ven Applications
i Provefernetive	ALL Type HostName Fot #Addroo Binding Informa. Add.	Vew Visual Disectories
	6.41 m 1 10.	Manage Website 💿
	3 MT Mys 40 903834285 Parces	p teater
	Zi Age	2xp
	Com Landon Krain 2	Browse Website (4) Stores - 20 (Store)
	Com Add Site Binding	E Server 1423 (Harr)
	Type Paddess Port	E (unit)
	The second secon	Advanced Settings
	20th	Cardigues Units
	nar	Add FTP Publishing.
	8	e no
	ge MMG Types Configure extensions and SSL metilicate	
	Modules Configure native and max Net selected v Select. Vinc.	
	Preparent Controls Configure properties for p	
	Configure provides for pr Configure provides for pr Configure provides for pr	
	to Texano State Configure sectors state settings and Forms authentication coolie settings	
	Specify requirements for SDL and client cartificates.	
	Features View in Content View	
Testy		

3. Select Default Web Site.

- 4. In the Actions panel on the right side of the window, click Bindings.
 - Site Bindings window opens. Click Add.
- 5. In the **Type** field, select **https**.
- 6. In the **Port** field, type **443**.
- 7. In SSL certificate, select your certificate from the list. Click **View** to see the properties of your certificate.
- 8. Click **OK** and close the window. You can now open the Control Center page via secure connection. Notice that the URL of your Control Center now starts with https://. This is how you know that you properly set up the secure connection to your Control Center.

NOTE: If you do not see the appropriate certificate on the list, install the certificate first. There are numerous instructions available on the Web.

Instructions for the EPMWebDAV Site

- 1. Open your IIS Manager.
- 2. In the **Connection** panel on the left side of the window, expand the **<servername>** node, and expand the **Sites** node.

Vg	Internet Information Services (IIS) Manager	
Fire Time Help		
Consections	PMWebDAV Home	Actions
 The second sec	Norm · * · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Id Hand
Test.	Contact View of Contact theor	
148 2 Y		N .(

- 3. Select EPMWebDAV.
- 4. In the **Actions** panel on the right side of the window, click **Bindings**.
 - Site Bindings window opens. Select the existing item and click Edit.
- 5. In the **Port** field, type **8081**.
- 6. Click OK.
- 7. Click Add.
- 8. In Type, select https.
- 9. In **Port**, select **8080**.
- In Host name, type the computer name. You can see the computer name in Control Panel > System and Security > System. This is just a computer name, not an FQDN name.
- 11. In **SSL certificate**, select the correct certificate in the list. You can click **View** button to see the properties of the certificate currently displayed in the drop down list.

Type: P address Port: https All Unassigned 0880. Host name: 9000000000000000000000000000000000000					
Inttps: All Unassigned Book Host name: jourcomputername gequire Server Name Indication SSL certificate: Not selected OK	Type: IP address:		Port:	_	
Host name: yourcomputename Require Server Name Indication SSL certificate: Not selected View OK Cancel	https v All Unassign	gnea	v 8084		
yourcomputername Require Server Name Indication SSL certificate: Not selected OK Cancel	Host name:				
Require Server Name Indication SSL certificate: Not selected View OK Cancel	yourcomputername				
SSL certificate: Not selected View OK Cancel	Require Server Name Indication	n			
Not selected View OK Cancel	SSL certificate:				
OK Cancel	Not selected	*	Select	View	
OK Cancel					
			OK	Cancel	

12. Click OK.

- 13. Select the old http binding configured on port 8081. Click **Remove**.
- 14. Click Close.

NOTE: If you do not see the appropriate certificate on the list, install the certificate first. There are numerous instructions available on the Web.

4.2 Choosing the user account for database creation

While installing your Control Center, you might learn the account you are logged under on does not have sufficient privileges to create the database and the required users on the server that hosts your SQL Server instance. In this case, your Control Center installer offers you **Optional User Setting Changes**. These settings allow you to change the user account under which you are trying to create the Control Center database or the required EPM users.

6 Advanc	ed Database Setti	ngs	×
Database creation			
Database name	NiceAN		
Credentials for creating the databas	se on the SQL Server.		
Windows Authentication			~
Use currently logged on u	user		
User name			
Password			
Users creation			
Control Center communicates with EPM_DBADMIN. Let the installer cru users and assign them the EPM_US	the database using the eate these users for yo SER and EPM_DBADMIN	ese two users: EPM_U u or take the already I roles.	JSER and created
Let this tool create required users			~
Windows Authentication			۷
Use currently logged on u	user		
User name			
Password			
	ОК	Cano	el

Open the Optional User Setting Changes in two cases:

- 1. You are currently logged on with a user account that has insufficient privileges for creating the database and the required users on the SQL Server instance.
- 2. You are planning to use the existing Windows or SQL users as your EPM_USER or EPM_ DBADMIN users.

Details about the required users for installing the Control Center are available in the section Identifying the required users.

Use the **Optional User Setting Changes** to create or edit the required users for database management, and for the communication between your Control Center and its database.

- Define the user that creates the database on the selected SQL Server instance. There are two options:
 - Use the currently logged on user. This is the Windows local or domain user under which you are installing the Control Center.

NOTE: You can use the Windows local user if the SQL Server runs locally on your machine. If the SQL Server runs on another machine within your domain, use a domain Windows user.

• You can specify another user that creates the database. This can either be a Windows or a SQL user. Define this using the selected **Authentication** type.



IMPORTANT! Whichever option you choose, the user must have the **sysadmin** role on your SQL Server instance.

- 2. Create users EPM_USER (to read the data) and EPM_DBADMIN (to own the database). There are two options to create these two users:
 - Automatically. The Control Center installer creates these two users for you. If you select this option, the installer creates EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN users as Windows users.
 - Manually. You can manually create the EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN users on your system before the installation. You can also use other existing Windows or SQL users to perform the roles of EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN users.

Read how to configure the manually created EPM users in the section <u>Configuring</u> securables for custom database users.

- If you select Windows Authentication, define the names of the predefined Windows users that take the EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN roles. Keep the default names to let the dedicated EPM users take these two roles, or type the name of other existing Windows users that take the roles instead.
- If you select SQL **Authentication**, define the existing SQL users that take the EPM_USER and EPM_DBADMIN roles.

4.3 Creating and configuring the database users

To complete the installation, your Control Center installer requires two database users:

- EPM_DBADMIN to install the database. This user also owns the database.
- EPM_USER to get access to database and to enable the communication with Control Center.

When creating the EPM users manually, your first option is to use Windows or SQL user account. The instructions below apply to both user types.

- The role of "EPM_DBADMIN" (you can change this user name). Assign this user the following roles: "Connect SQL" and "Create any database". Define these roles before you start installing the database.
- The role of "EPM_USER" (you can change this user name). Control Center application impersonates this user during every interaction with the database. The user is mapped to this database only.

Additionally, the user must be configured with additional permissions for the database (a default database name is NiceAN).



4.4 Updating your database connection settings

When your security policies or database infrastructure change, update your Control Center connections to your database with our Database Setup Tool. Updating your database user credentials or your connection settings ensures your systems work correctly with your new configuration.

NOTE: For Database Setup Tool installation, read <u>Phase 2: Creating your database in a</u> failover cluster.

NiceLabel Da	
 Lindate Control Conter cont	Choose what you are
Opulate Control Center Con	changing here.
connection parameters for your and	
Select your changes	
✓ SQL server name of database name of ✓ User names were changed	authentication was changed
Passwords were changed	
SQL Server that Control Center co	rects to
SQL Server name	and a second
New SQL Server name	ACC SLOPPED
Database name	NiceAN
New database name	NiceAN
Authentication	Windows Authentication ~
Use currently logged on user	
User name	
Password	
User that owns the database	
User name	EPM_DBADMIN
Password	
User that Control Center uses to c	nect to the database
User name	EPM_USER
Password	
	Update Cancel

Select your changes: select or deselect the following options to focus on exactly what you need to update:

- SQL server name or database name or authentication was changed: select to rename your database and set user authentication methods. When selected, use the SQL Server that Control Center connects to section to change:
 - New SQL Server name: type the name of the server instance that hosts your Control Center database.
 - New database name: type the name of your Control Center database. NiceAN is your default database name.
 - Authentication type: choose which method to use to log into your SQL server. Select Windows Authentication or SQL Server Authentication depending on your SQL server configuration.
 - To log in to your database with your current Windows credentials, check **Use** currently logged on user.
 - To log in with different Windows credentials, uncheck **Use currently logged on user** and type your user name and password.
 - To log in with SQL Authentication, type your SQL user name and password.

- User names were changed: select to change user names of your database owner and users:
 - **EPM_DBADMIN** is your default database owner.
 - **EPM_USER** is your default database user.

NOTE: The section **User that owns the database** is only visible when you use a SQL Server or an Azure SQL Database Managed Instance when you set up your database.

• **Passwords were changed**: select to change passwords of your database owner and users.

Click **Update**. The Database Setup Tool opens an alert (**Success: Database configuration update was successful**). Your database is configured and your applications are ready to use.

5 Installing Web Printing

Web Printing enables sharing your web applications (labels and solutions) from the Control Center's Document Storage with remote co-workers or external users via the web.

To enable the sharing you must complete installation procedures ob both sides:

- <u>On the server side</u>, you must install the Web Printing site. This is the application (Web Printing from now on) that enables the communication between the Control Center and the client side.
- <u>On the client side</u>, you must install the NiceLabel Web Client. All users that you share the web applications with, install the NiceLabel Web Client on their computers. Because NiceLabel Web Client is a thin client that does not require administrative privileges to be installed, anyone can install the client on their computers.

5.1 Installation steps for the Web Printing site

The Web Printing site connects to the Control Center database using the SQL user authentication. Before you begin with the installation, make sure that you know the user name and password for the SQL user with sufficient privileges for the Control Center database. You need this info during the installation process.

- 1. Log in to your computer as a user with local administrative permissions. This can be a local **Administrator** user account.
- 2. To ensure a complete installation, close all open applications before you start.
- 3. Download the software package or insert NiceLabel DVD. Web Printing application installation checks the installation package content.

NOTE: If the application menu does not start automatically, double-click NiceLabelWebPrinting2019.exe.

Before the actual installation starts, the wizard verifies if the following prerequisite components are installed on the server:

- Microsoft IIS
- Microsoft .NET Framework 4.5

If the .NET component is not present on your system, the installer sets up the component automatically before the wizard continues.

4. Select Install NiceLabel LMS.

- 5. Select NiceLabel Web Printing.
- 6. Select installation language from the drop-down list and click **OK**.
- 7. Follow the setup wizard prompts.
- 8. Define the IIS settings for the Web Printing site and define how the users access the Web Printing page:
 - You can install the Web Printing as a virtual directory below the default web site. Configure the virtual folder name . For example, the users access the site at /PowerFormsWeb">http://syourservername>/PowerFormsWeb.
 - You can install the Web Printing as a new web site. Be careful when providing the port number. You can only use ports that are not in use by any other service on this computer. For example, the site can be accessible as
 http://spourservernames:81/PowerFormsWeb if you have defined the port 81.
 - You can also define the host header values, so your site responds with a friendly name. For example, if you define a friendly name "mypowerformswebserver" and define the host header value for Web Printing site, the site also responds at the address http://mypowerformswebserver.

NOTE: TIP: See <u>NiceLabel Knowledge Base article KB200</u> for more information on how to set up friendly names.

NOTE: You can install the Web Printing site as a new site (1st level), or as a virtual directory within the selected Web site (2nd level). You cannot install it on the 3rd level.

• Activate HTTPS support if you wish to establish a secure client–server connection. This option automatically sets the port number to 443.

NOTE: Manually add HTTPS site binding and X.509 (SSL) certificate to the selected site in IIS manager. Details are available in the section <u>Adding HTTPS</u> site binding and SSL certificate in IIS.

Click Next.

9. Select the Microsoft SQL server, where you have already installed the Control Center database.

NOTE: This and the next steps are only applicable, if you install the Web Printing on a different computer than Control Center.

Make sure you type the correct SQL name and the instance name. If the SQL Server is configured with a default instance, type only the server name. If the MS SQL Server is configured with instances, type the server and instance name in the server\instance syntax, for example SQLEXPRESS.

WARNING: The Control Center database (NiceAN or any other) MUST already exist on the selected Microsoft SQL server.

- 10. Type your user name and password to access to the Control Center database on Microsoft SQL server. Provide the SQL account credentials (not Windows account credentials!). The Web Printing site connects to the database server as a SQL user.
- 11. After completing the Web Printing site setup, you can leave the **Run Web Printing** site check box selected. Click **Finish** and the **Login** page for Web Printing site opens in your browser.

5.2 Web Client installation

Installing Web Client for the logged on user (Default Option)

By default, Web Client installs on the computer for the currently logged on user. This is the most common installation method that does not require administrator privileges.

- 1. You receive an email with a link to the assigned web application. User name and password are provided with this email.
- 2. After clicking the link, the web application login web page opens. Type **User name** and **Password**.
- 3. The NiceLabel Web Printing intro page opens. Click **Launch Printing Solution** to open the assigned solution.
- 4. If the Web Client is not installed yet, click the "download and install the client first" link.
- 5. Run the downloaded installation file. Leave the browser window open.
- 6. Select installation language. Click OK.
- 7. Start Installation window appears. Click Install.
- 8. Click **Close** after the setup is done.
- 9. Return to step 3. Click **Launch Printing Solution** in your web browser. Your web application opens in a separate window.

NOTE: After completing the installation, you can find the installed Web Client in Users\AppData folder.

Installing Web Client for all users

You can also install the Web Client for all users that log on to the computer. This installation method requires administrator privileges.

EXAMPLE: This installation method is useful when using Citrix servers. Installation for all users allows you to install the Web Client only once, and publish it to all users.

- 1. Complete steps 1–4 from the previous section.
- 2. Open Command Prompt.
- 3. Navigate to the downloaded Web Client installation file NiceLabelWebClientSetup.exe on your system.
- 4. Run command NiceLabelWebClientSetup.exe ALLUSERSINSTALL.

After the installation for all users, you can find the installed Web Client in ProgramData folder.

6 Online Support

Find the latest builds, updates, workarounds and FAQ on our product web site at www.nicelabel.com.

For more information, visit:

- Knowledge base: https://www.nicelabel.com/support/knowledge-base
- NiceLabel Support: https://www.nicelabel.com/support/technical-support
- NiceLabel Tutorials: https://www.nicelabel.com/learning-center/tutorials
- NiceLabel Forums: https://forums.nicelabel.com/

NOTE: If you have a Service Maintenance Agreement (SMA), contact your premium support provider as specified in the agreement.

Americas

+1 262 784 2456

sales.americas@nicelabel.com

EMEA

+386 4280 5000

sales@nicelabel.com

Germany

+49 6104 68 99 80

sales@nicelabel.de

China

+86 21 6249 0371

sales@nicelabel.cn

www.nicelabel.com

